
1 | P a g e  

                 Township of Chatsworth 
Virtual Council Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday January 6, 2021 @ 9:00 a.m.  
Members Present: 
Mayor - Scott Mackey 
Deputy Mayor - Brian Gamble 
Councillor - Shawn Greig 
Councillor - Diana Rae 
Councillor - Elizabeth Thompson 
Staff Present: 
CAO Clerk, Patty Sinnamon 
Deputy Clerk, Carolyn Marx 
Treasurer, Karmen Krueger 
 
1.  Call to Order 

Mayor Mackey called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.   
 

2. Opening Ceremonies 
  Mayor Mackey called for a moment of reflection before proceeding with the Council Meeting. 

 
3.  Open Forum 

 There were no speaker requests for Open Forum. 
 

4.  Adoption of Agenda 
Resolution 2021-01-01 
Moved by: Shawn Greig 
Seconded by: Diana Rae 

That Council adopt the Agenda as circulated with the addition of By-law 2021-02 Interim Tax 
Levy and By-law 2021-03 General Borrowing By-law. Carried 
 

5. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest 
Mayor Mackey asked members of Council if they had any declarations. 
 

6.      Confirmation of Minutes 
Resolution 2021-01-02 
Moved by: Shawn Greig 
Seconded by: Brian Gamble 
 

That the minutes of the Council Meeting in Committee of the Whole and Council 
Session held on December 16, 2020 be confirmed as recorded. Carried 
 

7.      Matters Arising from Minutes - none 
8. Public Meetings (Statutory and Non-Statutory) - none 
9.      Matters Arising from Public Meetings 
10.  Introduction of By-laws – First and Second Reading 

Resolution 2021-01-03 
Moved by: Diana Rae 
Seconded: Elizabeth Thompson 
That the following by-laws be introduced and taken as read a first and second time, 
and that they be given consideration in Committee of the Whole: 
2021-01 Adopt Community Safety and Well Being Plan 

 2021-02 Interim Tax Levy 
 2021-03 General Borrowing By-law Carried 

 
11. Committee of the Whole 

Resolution 2021-01-04 
Moved by: Shawn Greig 

 Seconded by: Elizabeth Thompson   

 That Council now go into Committee of the Whole. Carried 



Township of Chatsworth 
Council Minutes 
January 6, 2021 

2 | P a g e  

11.1 Consent Agenda  
Resolution 2021-01-05 
Moved by: Diana Rae 
Seconded by: Shawn Greig 

 That the Consent Agenda items be hereby received for information with the exception of 
 Agenda item 11.1cii OSNGUPL Oct 29 Minutes and 11.1dii Kingsville-Small Business.  
 Carried 

 
11.2 Presentations/Delegations (Pre-Registered) 
 
11.3 Matters Arising from Presentations/Delegations 

 
11.4   Staff Reports and Verbal Updates from Staff 
 a)   Treasurer’s Report FIN 2021-01 Interim Tax Levy By-Law 

Resolution 2021-01-06 
Moved by:  Elizabeth Thompson 
Seconded by: Diana Rae 
THAT Treasurer’s Report 2021-01 regarding 2021 Interim Tax Rate By-law be 
hereby received; 
AND THAT Committee of the Whole recommends to Council adoption of the By-law 
to levy amounts on the assessment of property in the local municipality ratable for 
local municipality purposes as per the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, s. 317. Carried 
 
b)  CAO Clerk’s Report 2021-01 Sea Cans as Storage Containers 
Resolution: 2021-01-07 
Moved by: Shawn Greig 
Seconded by: Brian Gamble 
That Township of Chatsworth CAO Clerk’s Report 2021-01 regarding sea cans or 
shipping containers as storage units be hereby received for information.  Carried 
 
Resolution 2021-01-08 
Moved by: Elizabeth Thompson 
Seconded by: Brian Gamble 
That enforcement of sea cans or shipping containers remain status quo on a complaint driven 
basis. Carried  
 
c) Verbal Department Updates  
Finance – Treasurer Karmen Krueger reported on working on year end processes. There 
have been 111 budget survey responses received to date and will prepare a compilation 
report for the next council meeting.  Coordinated staff needs to be able to work from home 
during the current lockdown due to the pandemic. 
 
CAO Clerk Sinnamon – Planning has been very busy with both residential and commercial 
applications and inquiries.  Obtained quotes for flooring at Township Municipal Office and will 
be preparing a report to come to Council. Working and supporting staff and departments 
during the lockdown due to pandemic. 
 

11.5 Consideration of By-laws 
Resolution 2021-01-09 
Moved by: Shawn Greig 

 Seconded by: Elizabeth Thompson 

 That the following By-law(s) be referred to Council for consideration: 
2021-01 Adopt Community Safety and Well Being Plan 

 2021-02 Interim Tax Levy 
 2021-03 General Borrowing By-law Carried 

 
11.6 Items Requiring Direction  

 Staff were directed to send a letter to the United Church of Canada regarding funding for the 
Walters Falls Community Hall. 



Township of Chatsworth 
Council Minutes 
January 6, 2021 

3 | P a g e  

  
11.7 Items Requiring Discussion including Items Removed from Consent Agenda 

Resolution: 2021-01-10 
Moved by: Elizabeth Thompson 
Seconded by: Diana Rae 

 That the following items be introduced for discussion and received for information; Consent 
 Agenda item 11.1cii OSNGUPL Oct 29 Minutes and 11.1dii Kingsville-Small Business.   
 Carried 
 

Resolution 2021-01-11 
Moved by: Shawn Greig 
Seconded by: Brian Gamble 
That Township of Chatsworth support the Town of Kingsville to call upon the 
Premier of Ontario, Doug Ford, to protect the health of Ontarians and our small businesses 
by allowing them to remain open to in-store sales and service with limited capacity and 
increased safety measures.  Carried 

  
  
11.8 Rise and Report from Committee of the Whole 

Resolution 2021-01-12 
Moved by: Shawn Greig 
Seconded by: Brian Gamble 
That Committee of the Whole rise as Council to report and confirm the actions taken in 
Committee of the Whole. Carried 
 

12. Adopt Action of Council in Committee of the Whole 
Resolution 2021-01-13 
Moved by:  Diana Rae 

 Seconded by: Shawn Greig 
That the actions taken in Committee of the Whole today be confirmed and adopted by this 
Council; And Further that staff be authorized to take the actions necessary to give effect to 
approved recommendations contained within the staff reports; And Further that by-laws under 
consideration be presented to Council for first, second and third reading. Carried 
 

13. Third Reading of By-Laws  
Resolution 2021-01-14 
Moved by: Shawn Greig 
Seconded by: Elizabeth Thompson  
THAT the following by-laws be taken as read a third time, signed by the Mayor and 
Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal: 
2021-01 Adopt Community Safety and Well Being Plan 

 2021-02 Interim Tax Levy 
 2021-03 General Borrowing By-law Carried 

14. Notices of Motion  
 Councillor Rae brought forward a Notice of Motion regarding Library Services 

 
15.      Notice Provision 
 Council Budget Meeting – January 6, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. 
 Council Budget Public Meeting – January 13, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.  
16.      Tracking Sheet   

17.  Other Business 
Specialized Mobility Transit for Township Residents 
Resolution 2021-01-15 
Moved by: Shawn Greig 
Seconded by: Brian Gamble 
Councillor Greig provided a Notice of Motion to request Township staff to explore 
options including pricing on providing specialized mobility transit for Township 
residents.  Carried 



Township of Chatsworth 
Council Minutes 
January 6, 2021 

4 | P a g e  

18. Closed Meeting - none 
 

19. Confirmatory By-law 
Resolution 2021-01-16 
Moved by:  Shawn Greig 
Seconded by: Brian Gamble 
That By-law 2021-04 being a by-law to confirm all actions and proceedings of the January 6, 
2021 Council meeting be hereby read a first, second, and third time, signed by the Mayor and 
Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. Carried 
 

20.  Adjournment 
The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 11:11 a.m. 
 
 

     ______________________________ 
Scott Mackey, Mayor 

 
 ______________________________ 

Patty Sinnamon, CAO Clerk 

















mailto:cmarx@chatsworth.ca
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82401933664?pwd=akxRZ083WGd6T0lINlpKaTkycWxpdz09
mailto:cmarx@chatsworth.ca






















































1 | P a g e   

     

 
 

 
 
To: Mayor Mackey and Members of Council 
From: Ron Davidson, Township Planner 
Re: Zoning By-law Amendment application Z13/2020 
Meeting Date:   January 20, 2021 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
Recommendation: 

That Planners Report 2021-01 be hereby received; and 

Further that Committee of the Whole recommends to Council the approval of the Zoning 
Bylaw Amendment Application for Part Lot 61, Concession 1 NETRS, former Geographic 
Township of Holland, Township of Chatsworth.  Owner:  King Creative Inc. c/o Roger Mooking 

Further that staff be directed to prepare the necessary by-law to give effect to the application. 

 
Purpose of Application: 
The purpose of the Zoning By-law Amendment is to amend the current ‘R2’ zoning of the 
subject property to permit a residential / commercial mix use on the subject property.  A 
detached dwelling is proposed for the site; however, additional uses may include: 
indoor/outdoor filming of television shows (based primarily on lifestyle programming); facility 
rental; outdoor cooking; food/lifestyle product promotions and similar activities; and, 
associated sales of food or food products. 
 
The owner, Roger Mooking, is the host of a few cooking shows on Canadian television.  He 
proposes to erect a detached dwelling as a second residence for his family, but he also 
wishes to film some of his episodes on the site, both within the residence and outside.  As 
such, the residence will include a larger kitchen and a second, smaller kitchen for pre-filming 
food preparation.  Mr. Mooking also proposes to have an outdoor pizza oven and a smoke 
shed, and also provide opportunities for onsite food product promotions and related sales.  
The facility may also be made available as a rental.  A parking lot will be constructed. 
 
The Subject Lands: 
The subject property is located within the settlement area of Berkeley, along the east side of 
Sideroad 60. The site comprises 5.3 hectares of land and is vacant.  The north portion of the 
site is forested. 
 
Adjacent Lands: 
Lands to the west, northwest and south of the subject parcel are occupied by detailed 
dwellings. The property to the north is forested.  The parcel to the east appears to be in 
agricultural production. 
 
Official Plan: 
The subject lands are situated within Berkeley, which is designated ‘Secondary Settlement 
Area’ on Schedule A to the County of Grey Official Plan.  A variety of urban type uses are 
generally permitted within this designation including residential, commercial, industrial, 
institutional and recreational uses.  The proposed residential/commercial mixed may be 
permitted within this land use designation. 
 
The ‘Secondary Settlement Area’ policies stated that new commercial uses shall only be 
allowed if it can be demonstrated that the proposed use can be accommodated by individual 
on-site private services with no adverse environmental effects.  In this regard, commercial 
component of the proposed use will be relatively small in size and also occasional.  As such, 
and given the size of the property, the property should be able to accommodate a septic 
system of an appropriate size to handle the development.  In any event, matters associated 
with septic and a potable water supply will be addressed at the Site Plan Agreement stage. 
 
The policies for this land use designation also state that adequate buffering must be 
maintained between commercial uses and any residential uses.  On this note, the owner will 
be keeping the buildings and parking area as far away from the closet neighbour’s dwelling as 

TOWNSHIP OF CHATSWORTH 

PLANNERS REPORT 2021-01 

 



2 | P a g e   

possible, as illustrated on the submitted drawing.  Also, as many trees as possible will be kept 
in order to provide a buffer from the neighbour’s house.  It’s worth noting that Mr. Mooking 
has been speaking directly with the neighbours regarding the proposed development in an 
attempt to alleviate any possible concerns that may arise.  The Site Plan Agreement will 
include these mitigation measures. 
 
No natural heritage features have been mapped in the County Official Plan for the subject 
property or lands within 120 metres of the site. 
 
Based on the foregoing, it is evident that the proposed amendment conforms to the County 
Official Plan. 
 
Provincial Policy Statement: 
The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) directs urban activity, such as commercial 
development, to the designated settlement areas of the County such as Berkeley. 
 
The PPS allows for privately serviced development in urban centres where municipal or 
communal series are not available provided the lands are suitable for such a servicing 
arrangement over the long term.   Although no issues are expected, servicing will be 
addressed during the Site Plan Agreement stage.   
 
It would appear that the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment is consistent with the PPS. 
 
Zoning By-law: 
The subject property is zoned ‘R2’ (Urban Residential). A detached dwelling and uses 
accessory thereto are permitted. 
 
The intended commercial component of the development, however, is not permitted in the 
‘R2’ zone and therefore the requested Zoning By-law Amendment is necessary. 
 
Discussion, Conclusion and Recommendation: 
The subject property is large in size and seems to be appropriate for the uses proposed for 
the site. 
 
The development is providing an excellent opportunity for tourism and employment within 
Berkeley and the entire Township.  The nature of this commercial activity would seem 
desirable.  It could also have economic spinoff effects. 
 
The proposed development on the subject property conforms to the County Official Plan and 
is consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement. 
 
Based on the foregoing, favourable consideration of the requested rezoning should be given. 
 
Should this application be approved, the owner will be required to enter into a Site Plan 
Agreement.  The Agreement will deal with building location, servicing, lighting, buffering, etc. 
 
This opinion is provided without the benefit of having received comments from any other 
agency or any adjacent land owners.  Should new information arise regarding this proposal, 
Council is advised to take such information into account when considering the application. 
 
I trust this information will be of assistance. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Ron Davidson, BES, RPP, MCIP 



  

 

 

 
 
 
TO:          Mayor Mackey and Members of Council 
 
FROM:     Patty Sinnamon, CAO Clerk 
 
RE:          2021 Council and Staff Remuneration and Market Check 
 
DATE:     January 20, 2021 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That Report 2021-02 regarding Council and Staff remuneration, be hereby received for 
information; 
 
And that Committee of the Whole recommends to Council the adoption of the 2021 Council 
Remuneration By-law and the 2021 Staff Remuneration By-law. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This report is being provided as a follow up to a previous closed session under the 
heading of employee negotiations in December 2020 and the Council discussions 
regarding the 2021 budget approval. 

 
The Township’s employee compensation policy 08.01 (viii) indicates that the pay grid 
structure will be adjusted by a specific percentage amount to maintain internal equity, 
using the Consumer Price Index for Ontario, as of October of each year.  Council will 
approve the annual cost of living adjustment through the budgeting process. 
 
2021 was an unusual year, given the implications of COVID-19.  The posted October CPI 
stated a negative index rating.  Following discussions with Council, Council directed that in 
an effort to recognize staff, that an increase of .5% would be included in the 2021 budget.  
The impact of .5% increase represents a dollar increase of less than $20,000.00 in the 
budget, including impacts to benefit and employer costs.  A draft by-law is included in the 
agenda package, under Section 10 – Introduction of By-laws.  It is to be noted that in 
March, 2020 Council removed the Senior Management positions from the Grid (CAO Clerk 
was removed in 2016; the Operations Manager and Treasurer being removed in 2020).  
The By-law reflects a .5% increase for those positions and is included in the 2021 budget. 
 
Further, Council passed a resolution that Council would be given the same CPI increase 
as staff and therefore, a draft by-law is being presented with this report with a 
recommendation to approve the by-law.  Again, the by-law is included under Section 10 of 
the agenda packge. 
 
The compensation policy indicates that a market check will be completed every four years, 
comparing the pay bands and grids to “the market”.  Council is to approve the criteria for 

 

CAO CLERKS REPORT 2021-02 



choosing the comparators to be used, and the 50th percentile of the job rate of the 
comparators will be used. 
 
Staff would recommend that a market check be carried out in 2021 in preparation of the 
2022 budget.  Market checks are important to the organization to ensure that wages are 
comparable to other municipalities in both the recruitment and retention of employees. 
 
 
 
The following municipalities are recommended as comparators, based on population 
and/or geographic region. 
 
  All Grey County lower tier municipalities 
  Arran-Elderslie 
  Brockton 
  Saugeen Shores 
  South Bruce Peninsula 
  Wellington North 
  Minto 
  
Link to Strategic Plan or Other Approved Plans: 
 
Fiscal Management, Accountability and Transparency  

- To ensure Chatsworth remains financially sustainable 
- Financial Accountability 
- Creating a culture of innovation and best practices 

 
Continuous Improvement  

- Fostering pride in the Workplace 
 
Inter-departmental Impact and/or Other Departments Consulted:  none 

 
Financial Implications:        Treasurer Reviewed   

  
The financial implications of the remuneration increases have been included in the 2021 
budget.   There are no implications to the 2021 budget regarding the market check; 
however, there may be implications to the 2022 budget.  There is no cost to prepare the 
market check, as staff propose to complete the project in-house. 
 
Attachments:  
See the draft by-laws under Section 10 of the agenda package. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted   Reviewed by 

     

 Patty Sinnamon, Dipl.M.M.   Karmen Krueger, CPA, CA 
 CAO Clerk     Treasurer 



 

CAO CLERKS REPORT 2021-03  

 

 

 

 

TO:          Mayor Mackey and Members of Council 
 
FROM:     Patty Sinnamon, CAO Clerk 
 
RE:          Disposition of Unopened Road Allowance – Robert Street and Front Street 
 
DATE:     January 20, 2021 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That Report 2021-03 regarding the disposition of an unopened road allowance – Robert 
Street and Front Street) be hereby received for information 
 
And that Committee of the Whole recommends to Council that the unopened road allowance 
for Robert Street and part of Front Street be declared surplus to the needs of the municipality 
 
And further that Committee of the Whole recommends to Council that the declared surplus 
lands be conveyed to 1061021 Ontario Inc. for the consideration of all costs including 
surveying and legal costs and any other township expenses (Teranet search). 
 
AND further that the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to execute all ancillary documentation to 
complete the disposition of lands and transfer to 1061021 Ontario Inc. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Staff were contacted by the owners of the Walters Falls Inn (1061021 Ontario Inc. – Hallman) 
regarding an unopened road allowance that crosses through their property.  They are 
requesting top acquire the lands for two reasons, one to clear up the land configuration 
including the parking lot, and secondly, a desire to develop adjacent lands into residential 
lots.  A copy of the GIS mapping identifying the parcels is attached and will be used as a 
reference point for this report. 
 
In reviewing the attached GIS mapping, it would appear that all of Robert Street goes through 
the lands owned by the numbered company.  However, there is a deed registered in 2008 
wherein part of Robert Street was transferred from Willard G. Hallman Lumber Limited to the 
numbered company, based on a previous deed description.   
 
It is unclear whether the former Township of Holland actually transferred that portion to the 
Hallman family as there is nothing showing on title.  A survey was prepared in February 2012 
for a portion of Robert Street.  A search of Holland Township by-laws, did not reveal a by-law 
to stop up, close and transfer Robert Street, but correspondence in the roll file indicates that 
the owner has had possession of those lands since prior to 1969.  It makes complete sense 
that this would have been transferred to the Hallmans, as you will note that the unopened 
road allowance goes right through the Inn property (Parcel A). 
 



The numbered company would need to satisfy itself through a full search of title, as to the 
ownership of that portion of Robert Street.  Staff would recommend that whatever 
housekeeping documentation is required by the Township to correct this deficiency in 
perhaps both title and GIS mapping be approved and that the CAO Clerk and Mayor be 
authorized to execute such documentation. 
 
Further, the Hallman family owns Parcel B (Willard G. Hallman Lumber) and is interested in 
severing this parcel into residential lots.  To accommodate the lot size requirements, they 
would like to acquire the remaining part of Robert Street.  Access to any residential 
development could be via Alma Street or Jack Street. 
 
Staff would recommend that the entire portion of Robert Street be declared surplus.  That 
remaining portion of Robert Street be conveyed to Willard G. Hallman Lumber or the 
numbered company, dependent upon new lot configuration.  It does appear that a portion 
should be transferred to the numbered company and a portion to the Lumber company. 

 
Council can also see from the GIS mapping that a portion of Front Street is also used as part 
of the parking lot for the Inn.  Staff recommend that a portion of this street also be declared 
surplus and transferred to the numbered company.  As Front Street is an open street, a 
public meeting is required to close that portion.  Should Council approve the lands to be 
surplus, staff would provide notice of a public meeting to close up that portion of Front Street. 
Any transfer to the numbered company for that portion of Front Street would need to include 
a right of way for the Township to allow snowplow equipment to turn around. 

 
Link to Strategic Plan or Other Approved Plans: 
Economic Development  

- Realizing economic development opportunities 
- Raise Chatsworth's Economic Development Profile 
- Promote local growth 
- Develop tourism potential  
- Expand local employment options 

 
Fiscal Management, Accountability and Transparency  

- Position ourselves for growth and development 
- Creating a culture of innovation and best practices 

 
Continuous Improvement  

- Fostering a forward-thinking workplace environment 
- Excellence in Customer Service 
- Maintaining Positive staff-community relations 

 
 
Inter-departmental Impact and/or Other Departments Consulted:   
Public Works 

 
Financial Implications:        Treasurer Reviewed  

  
There are no financial impacts to the Township as all costs would be paid by the 
proponent. 
 



Attachments:  
GIS Mapping 
Portion of Reference Plan 16R-10144. 

 

Respectfully submitted    Reviewed by 

      

 Patty Sinnamon, Dipl.M.M.    Karmen Krueger, CPA, CA 
 CAO Clerk      Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



"E
f

a
A

J
 c

o
CM

•
S

T
*

=E
P

O
U

:
ID

^
m

lS
r

-.1

c^
l

T
 —

/"
\

<
<

->

—
7

^
£
—

'̂\

ln
n

\
J
 1

C

K
.lu

^
n

n
n

\
^

i

j-
_

LiJ
Ll J
orh

-

(/)

«yxK
^

»
mw

"
~

I

~
7

-a
:—

^Q\
-1

-

^ĈM§
^

' ? ?!
^ ^!p0(0

in'00N

.§

0L
d

~
G

t
LiJ
h

-

(/)
r
 r

\
<

^
LiJ
or

h
-

~
7

-i:—

0or
L

i_

t3§-&•I5n
xCt

'̂Q
^

^
(/)

<
p

 ^
Fsi £
b

' s
!0

<a0

^1

<
y

mwp10U
3

n

^

^
i

^1&
 csl

p ^
-1

•
\

h
 in

F
i

3
-0

^
.^

(j1
r
fr

f -l
T

<
^

' .ld
J

."o
s
'8

0
-0

^
}

f«S
l..6

S
.6

£
N

•
?IY

H
d

a

.9
8

-1
2

1

<
?a

?<
?//<

y

c^
'1S

N
/

U
~

!}^
lO

-l8
tZ

£
N

ld

—
\

1
~

?~
]M

IO

1
 \

_
n

a
^

\
J

-L
G

-jC
^

a

(ZQ
 3.6Q

^S
~N

)
3

..0
S

.6
S

.S
C

N

Q
£

O
r
iH

 '1
S

N
I

W
9

Z
.iO

-l8
l/:£

-

/

O
N

V

'̂-
^

8P
S

Z
.L

N
S

O
•1SN

/

^
c

^
'

N
ld

.S
S

'-t
^

10
csl
oo

mV
)

H
dV

d

ÎI^ °^
 b

.
^

.S
6
-S

6

3
«0

^
6
S

.S
£
N

(id
 3

^
,H

^
N

)

<
?'a

?'Z
7

/<
y

(j-~
7

}^
iO

-i8
lZ

£
~

^
.-

0
.

^0\;\~^0
,^
-

'J.S
N

/

N
ld

h
-

a
Q0



<MQ~T~C~[:>CT^
OI^J I L_r\;L_L^

-L,:
-tf —

! D I AM
I L-r-M M

.——J

CD/^K l~r
I I \\J\ M I

Registered Plan

PIN
9'50"W P1, N5J'26'W Of)
21'25"W^<aos and Set)

126.50' SIB(H&;M)|

LiJ
—I— ^ci ^"^ \n

q-i-pc-c-y
o 1 r\L-L-1

No.

37181-0227(LT)

396.00'CSet Pl)

N.!^
I M U

•I 0 ^
I ^\-

L______.

124 )

205.50'

IN
VA 0'
r'r-\r\ i

IB(823)
^

IB(823)

/
^ /s /

/ r 1 CD̂ _ I/ ur\ —.
^ ••?/-\

'•'i-^U 0

D A D'.
r'r\r\ /

-7
/

(MILL POND)

^bO-2-.-^..Of

I REQUIRE THIS PLAN TO
BE DEPOSITED UNDER

THE REGISTRY ACT.

Q^-g. FEBRUARY 2, 2012

J. BRENT ENGLAND
ONTARIO LAND SURVEYOR

PLAN 16R-/o/^
RECEIVED AND DEPOSITED

DATE _ /js^h/u.ac^- -^- (_ <^DL?'L - -

-6_Ai/^c
REPRESENTATIVE FOR LAND REGISTRAR FOR
THE REGISTRY DIVISION OF GREY (No. 16)

SCHEDULE OF PARTS

PART LOT

PART OF LOT 2, CONCESSION 12

PIN
ALL OF 37181-0176(R)

INST. OSN17548 AND HL2035

PART 1 - ALL OF 37181-0176(R)

PLAN OF SURVEY
OF PART OF

LOT 2
CONCESSION 12

(GEOGRAPHIC TOWNSHIP OF HOLLAND)

TOWNSHIP OF CHATSWORTH
COUNTY OF GREY

IVAN DINSMORE LTD., O.L.S.

SCALE 1 Inch = 40 Feet

50 100 150 200 Feet

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
I CERTIPi" THAT:
THIS SURVEY AND PLAN ARE CORRECT AND IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE SURVEYS ACT, THE SURVEYORS ACT AND THE
REGISTRY ACT AND THE REGULATIONS MADE UNDER THEM.

1.

2. THE SURVEY WAS COMPLETED ON THE 2ND DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2012.

OWEN SOUNDSOUND
FEBRUARY 2. 2012

LEGEND
•
D
SIB
SSIB
IB
Wit
823
H&M

kt\ /k jl

SURVEY MONUMENT FOUND
SURVEY MONUMENT SET
STANDARD IRON BAR
SHORT STANDARD IRON BAR
IRON BAR
WITNESS
IVAN DINSMORE LTD.. O.L.S.
HEWETT AND MILNE LIMITED, O.L.S
Mr\ \/IC-IQI c" ii ji A Diyiki/^c*

J. BRENT ENGLAND
ONTARIO LAND SURVEYOR



 

CAO CLERKS REPORT 2021-04 
 

 

 

 
TO:          Mayor Mackey and Members of Council 
FROM:     Patty Sinnamon, CAO Clerk 
RE:          Replacement of Flooring in Administration Building 
DATE:     January 20, 2021 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That Report 2021-04 regarding the replacement of flooring for the Administration Building, be 
hereby received for information 
 
And that Committee of the Whole recommends to Council that the quote from Greyfair 
Flooring in the amount of $22,148.74 inclusive of HST be hereby accepted; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT staff may proceed with the painting of the administration building 
provided the cost does not exceed $15,000.00. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2017 a staff report was presented to council to replace the flooring in the upper level of 
the township administration building.  The cost estimate at that time was $22,303.88 
exclusive of HST.  The intent was to replace the ceramic flooring in the entrance and 
washroom, tiling in the kitchen and carpeted areas.  Flooring in one of the offices was to be 
replaced. 
 
At that time, the request was not approved as Council felt there may be cheaper options 
including labour costs. 
 
Various options had been explored and the project was then put on hold as other matters 
took priority (ie. Staffing, etc.). 
 
Since that time, the flooring has obviously deteriorated further, and it is recommended that 
all flooring in the administration building (both upper and lower level) be replaced, with the 
exception of the three offices that were completed in 2016.    There have been no other 
upgrades to the administration facility since it was built in 2000. 
 
Staff have contacted a few flooring companies and have secured a price of $22,148.74 
inclusive of HST for both levels.  Timing was a factor in that the same flooring priced in 
2017 is still available and a pre-Christmas sale of 40% can be realized.  This price is being 
held until the first week of February.  This price includes the removal of all ceramic 
flooring, tile and carpet, and new vinyl trim matched to the offices. 
 
With regard to a start date, it will be dependent on Covid regulations, but the price will be 
secured if approved by Council. 



 
The budgeted amount for this project is $60,000.00 including the cost of painting.  I am 
finalizing pricing but can indicate it will be approximately $11,000.00 based on one quote 
already received. 
 
Once I can confirm the painting cost, I would like to proceed as quickly as possible, so as 
to coordinate with the replacement of the flooring.  There is a significant amount of 
furniture and IT equipment that has to be moved to accommodate the painting and 
replacement of flooring. 

 
Link to Strategic Plan or Other Approved Plans 
 
Fiscal Management, Accountability and Transparency  

- To ensure Chatsworth remains financially sustainable 
- Fix, Repair and Maintain - Don't let our good assets fall behind 
- Financial Accountability 
- Reduce the Potential for Loss due to unmitigated risks 

 
Continuous Improvement  

- Fostering pride in the Workplace 
 
Inter-departmental Impact and/or Other Departments Consulted:  none 

 
Financial Implications:        Treasurer Reviewed   
  
The project is included in the 2021 budget at an overall cost of $60,000.00 and is funded 
by existing Administration Reserves.  The proposal is considerably less than the budgeted 
amount.  Any unspent reserves will remain in the reserve for future projects outlined in the 
10-year capital program. 
 
Attachments: none 

 
Respectfully submitted    Reviewed by 

      

 Patty Sinnamon, Dipl.M.M.    Karmen Krueger, CPA, CA 
 CAO Clerk      Treasurer 

 



  

 
TO: Mayor Mackey and Members of Council  

FROM: Karmen Krueger, CPA, CA, Treasurer 

RE: RFP Award – Development Charges Study 
 

DATE: January 20, 2021  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
THAT Treasurer’s Report 2021-03 regarding RFP Award – Development Charges Study 
be hereby received; 
 
AND THAT Committee of the Whole recommends to Council award of the RFP to 
Watson & Associates in the amount of $29,600; 
 
AND THAT Committee of the Whole recommends to Council pursuing the optional 
Parkland study proposed by Watson & Associates for an additional $15,000; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Committee of the Whole recommends to Council the funding of 
these services be the Modernization Reserve. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 
Further to staff report FIN 2020-21, staff were directed to solicit Requests for Proposals 
for a Development Charges Study.   
 
Some key highlights from FIN report 2020-21 include: 
 
- Development Charges (DCs) ensure that growth and development pay a fair share 

towards the pressures put on municipal infrastructure.   
- DCs are a legitimate funding source for municipal initiatives.  They can be collected 

and used to partially pay for replacement infrastructure (the wear and tear due to the 
impact of growth) as well as new investment required as a result of growth 

- Municipalities must consider the impact of growth on infrastructure and fairly distribute 
the costs of infrastructure between existing users and new users 

- There is no evidence or data that municipalities with DCs suffer losses of 
development nor, similarly, is there evidence that municipalities without DCs 
experience the benefit of additional growth. 

 

TREASURER’S REPORT 2021-03 



- DCs demonstrate that we are a municipality that is forward-thinking, prepared for 
growth, and have considered the financial implications of future needs.   

 
During the presentation of report FIN 2020-21, questions were raised around what other 
municipalities do with respect to DCs.   
 
Comparing DCs between municipalities that offer different services and different levels 
of service is not overly useful, however, staff have prepared the following summary 
within Grey and Bruce Counties.  For ease of reference, only single family residential 
DCs are shown but commercial and multi-residential DCs are also in place for most who 
have a DC by-law.  Rural reflects no water or wastewater services so is often lower.  
The wide variance will be due to many factors, but it will mainly be due to services that 
are provided and the current capacity versus the need to add infrastructure with new 
growth. 
 
County of Grey 
 
Municipality Urban/Full Services Rural 
Owen Sound $8,000 N/A 
West Grey $6,176 N/A 
Meaford $11,440 $4,863 
Southgate $20,488 $5,514 
Georgian Bluffs N/A N/A 
Hanover N/A N/A 
Chatsworth N/A N/A 
County $7,524 N/A 

 
County of Bruce 
 
Municipality Urban/Full Services Rural 
South Bruce Peninsula * $10,708/$7,855 N/A 
Kincardine $13,921 N/A 
Saugeen Shores $16,563 $8,685 
Northern Bruce Peninsula N/A N/A 
Brockton N/A N/A 
Huron Kinloss N/A N/A 
South Bruce N/A N/A 
County N/A N/A 

 
The Town of South Bruce Peninsula has two urban rates within Wiarton only due to the 
boundary with Georgian Bluffs and does not collect DCs outside of the Town limits. 
 
RFP Results 
 
Two proposals were received, and evaluation of the proposals was conducted by senior 
staff.  Both submissions met the basic requirements, but one proposal stood out due to the 



recognition that Chatsworth is not likely to benefit from implementing a Community Benefit 
Charge due to the limitations on sizes of developments that the CBC applies to. 
 
Further, this proposal included an optional additional study relating to Parkland, to ensure 
that the Township can continue to receive Parkland and cash in lieu of Parkland under the 
new legislation. 
 

 
 
Before including the cost factor, Watson was clearly much higher.  Despite their higher 
proposal cost, the overall scoring reflects Watson as better value for the money. 
 
Community Benefit Charges and Parkland 
 
As the Community Benefits Charge (CBC) legislation (as per Bill 197 COVID-19 
Economic Recovery Act, 2020) only allows for the recovery of capital from residential 
developments that are a minimum of five (5) storeys and/or residential developments 
with at least ten (10) units, it does not appear that the Township gain any benefit from 
implementing this type of charge. 
 
However. changes to the Planning Act introduced through Bills 108, 138 and 197 
regarding parkland dedication made changes to how a municipality may acquire 
parkland.  There is now a need for a park plan, a public process and parkland by-law.   
Under previous rules in the Planning Act, municipalities could require developers to 
provide parkland or cash in lieu with the idea the cash would allow for purchase of land 
to create a park.  The Township has a parkland by-law to reflect this. 
 
But now, while Parkland development is an approved DC service, the Development 
Charges Act does not allow for the acquisition of parkland as an eligible capital cost.   
Therefore, to ensure that the Township can continue to have the ability to acquire 

Out Of Watson DFA
Criteria

Company Profile 10 8                  8                            
Project Experience 15 13                11                          
Approach, Methodology and Project Schedule 25 21                17                          
Consultant Team 10 7                  6                            
Cost Factor -              -                         

SubTotal (Max 60) 50        41                33                          

Fee  29,600.00$  25,150.00$            
Fee Proposal (Max 40) 34                40                          
Price Score = Price weighting * (Lowest/Current)

Total Score 75                73                          

Score



parkland, it is suggested that the Township undertake a review of the parks plan and by-
law.  Doing so at this time offers some efficiencies as the provisional cost is an 
additional $15,000 – likely less than if pursued independently. 
 
Based on this, the proponent submission has recommended the Township consider 
keeping this type of revenue recovery.  Staff agree that this provisional item represents 
good value for money, to ensure the ability for the Township to still acquire parklands or 
cash in lieu.   
 
Next Steps 
 
Staff recommend awarding the proposal work to Watson & Associates and including the 
Parkland component to the scope of work.   
 
The consultant’s proposed workplan includes the following steps: 
 
1. Undertake an analysis of the following items:  

a. The planning period time-horizon for non-discounted services;  
b. The local service policy;  
c. Special area rates;  
d. Phase-in strategies;  
e. Discretionary exemptions;  
f. Indexing options;  
g. Payment agreements, credits, front-ending agreements, and subdivision 
agreements; and  
h. DC recovery policies and strategies.  

 
2. Hold start-up meeting to provide staff and Council with information about the project, 
legislative requirements, and to discuss the process. This meeting will involve an  
education session regarding the implications of Bill 73, Bill 108, Bill 138 and Bill 197 and 
the changes to the DC study process.  
 
3. Hold a minimum of two (2) Council meetings to provide Council with an 
understanding of the process and to solicit feedback on policies and receive direction on 
area rating (as required by the amendments to the DEVELOPMENT CHARGES ACT). 
The meetings will also include an education session on the most current rules as per Bill 
108 and Bill 197;  
 
4. Hold one (1) day of staff interviews to meet and discuss the Township’s anticipated 
capital needs and 10-year historical service standards;  
 
5. Hold one (1) stakeholder meeting to present preliminary findings and policy 
recommendations to the development community and residents to solicit their feedback;  
 
6. Work with staff to develop the Township’s Local Service Policy, under section 59 (2) 
of the Development Charges Act as required by Bill 73. The amendments to the 



legislation require a more comprehensive Local Service Policy;  
 
7. Through discussions with staff, undertake a DC calculation scenario that would 
support a service area delivery option (area rating). We would provide for one scenario 
and recommend that it be on either an “urban vs. rural” approach or based on water and 
wastewater servicing capacity by development area.  
 
8. Prepare the DC background study document for staff input, presenting an analysis of 
the data collected, a DC schedule based on defined calculation methodology (cashflow 
basis), with a sound legal basis, and policy recommendations. Prepare a draft by-law for 
staff and Council’s consideration;  
 
9. Present the report and proposed rates at a statutory Public Meeting (including a 
survey of DC rates in other municipalities);  
 
10. Attend the Council meeting for the adoption of the DC by-laws;  
 
11. Provide the Township with all reports; and  
 
12. Be available for the Township as an expert witness at the LPAT in the event of an 
appeal (based on a separate budget) and provide post-adoption implementation 
support.  
 
Further, the consultants would consider all the matters addressed by the DC Act as 
amended, including:  
 

• The preparation of growth projections (anticipated development) over 10-year 
and longer-term forecast periods, based on the Township’s Official Plan and any 
other necessary plans or documents. The growth forecast will address 
residential, commercial, industrial, and institutional development by time-period, 
type, size, and general location. Other categories, such as seasonal 
development, may be discussed at project initiation. We note that the LPAT has 
a preferred method for preparing a growth forecast and our studies conform to 
this approach;  
 
• The capital servicing requirements of the anticipated growth. We will meet with 
individual departments for an in-depth review of capital needs, understanding 
that changes to the growth forecast will require a change in the level of capital 
needs;  
 
• The 10-year level of service cap and deductions for benefit to existing 
development (i.e., property tax or non-DC funding), post planning period 
capacity, excess capacity, grants, and other contributions, etc.;  
 
• Credits, full or partial exemptions, etc.;  
 



• Collection policies and related administrative matters; 
  
• The long-range capital and operating cost examination, as well as the asset 
management plan required by the Development Charges Act, as amended;  
 
• The rules regarding DC implementation (e.g., phasing-in, indexing, municipal-
wide versus area-specific charges, allocation between class of developments 
including mixed uses and changes in use); and  
 
• As per the amended Act, area rating of charges must and will be considered.  

 
The workplan can be amended, as necessary. 
 
Link to Strategic Plan: 

 
Economic Development  

- Realizing economic development opportunities 
- Raise Chatsworth's Economic Development Profile 
- Promote local commercial and retail growth 
- Develop tourism potential  
- Expand local employment options 

 
Fiscal Management, Accountability and Transparency  

- To ensure Chatsworth remains financially sustainable 
- Financial Accountability 
- Position ourselves for growth and development 

 
Continuous Improvement  

- Fostering a forward-thinking workplace environment 
 
Inter-departmental Impact:   
 
There will be some input required from public works and planning relating to the ten-
year capital forecast and projections relating to planned growth and development.  Key 
staff and departments will be involved throughout the process. 
 
Financial Implications:        Treasurer Reviewed   
  
The 2020 budget had estimated $25,000 for the cost of completing a DC study and 
these funds are currently in admin reserves awaiting the project.  If Council wishes to 
pursue the additional Parkland study the additional funds of $19,600 over the initial 
estimate can be managed through working capital, current year or reserves as required.   
 
Upon review of what the DC Study means to the Township as a future funding source, 
staff believe that this endeavour does represent an appropriate use of the 
Modernization funding based on the provincial message, “With this funding, 



municipalities can improve service delivery by finding smarter, more efficient ways to 
spend money that help those who need it most while respecting taxpayer dollars”. and 
as such, staff recommend this as the funding source.  The reserves previously 
allocated in the Admin reserve would remain for alternative future use. 
 
As the DC Study must be reviewed every five years, the intent is that a portion of the 
DCs collected over the next five years would fully fund subsequent studies.   
 
Options: 
 
1) Authorize the award of the RFP for a DC Study and provisional work for a Parkland 
Study to Watson & Associates 
2) Authorize the award of the RFP for a DC Study only to Watson & Associates 
3) Do not continue exploring Development Charges as a funding source within the 
Township 
 
Attachments:  
 
None. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted,     Reviewed by,   

      
Karmen Krueger, CPA, CA     Patty Sinnamon, Dipl.M.M. 
Treasurer       CAO Clerk 



  

 
TO: Mayor Mackey and Members of Council  

FROM: Karmen Krueger, CPA, CA, Treasurer 

RE: Survey Results and Next Steps 
 

DATE: January 20, 2021  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
THAT Treasurer’s Report 2021-04 regarding Survey Results and Next Steps be hereby 
received for information; 
  
BACKGROUND: 

 
Due to Covid19, staff and Council had concerns regarding the budget process and 
having appropriate information available to residents.  Just prior to the 2021 Budget 
meetings starting in early December 2020, staff put together a short survey that was 
distributed on our website, posted on our Facebook page and mail dropped to local 
residents through the postal system.  
 
The intent was to gauge residents’ interest in and involvement in the budget process, 
and ask a couple of key questions on general sentiment towards taxes and services that 
the municipality provides.  It was limited to a few questions intentionally so people might 
be more inclined to take 2 minutes and get it back to us.  There were some interesting 
conclusions that can be drawn from the data and this report is intended to share the 
aggregate information with Council. 
 
Respondents had an opportunity to add free-form comments or feedback online, and 
many took advantage of the white space on the physical forms to share ideas, 
comments and feedback. 
 
General 
 

- Total of 112 responses were received at January 7, 2020. 
- Responses were tracked based on the method chosen to respond with the 

highest response rate received through Facebook.  Manual Responses were 
received in the dropbox at the Administration Offices and were manually data 
entered by staff. 

 

TREASURER’S REPORT 2021-04 















THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHATSWORTH 

BY-LAW NUMBER 2021- 07 

 
BEING a By-law to confirm the proceedings of the Council Meeting of the 
Corporation of the Township of Chatsworth held on January 20, 2021 

Whereas Section 5(1) of the Municipal Act 2001, S.O. 2001, Chapter 25 as amended, grants 
powers of a Municipal Corporation to be exercised by its Council; and 

Whereas Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act 2001, S.O. 2001, Chapter 25 as amended, 
provides that powers of every Council are to be exercised by By-law unless specifically 
authorized to do otherwise; and  

Whereas it is deemed expedient that the proceedings of the Council Meeting held on January 
20, 2021 are confirmed and adopted by By-law; 

Now Therefore the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Chatsworth enacts as 
follows: 

1. That the actions of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of 
Chatsworth at its Council Meeting held on January 20, 2021in respect to each 
motion and resolution passed, reports received and direction given by the 
Council at the said meeting is hereby adopted and confirmed. 

2. The Mayor and the proper Officials of the Corporation are hereby authorized 
and directed to do all things necessary to give effect to the said action of the 
Council. 

Read a first and second time this 20th day of January 2021 

Read a third time and finally passed this 20th day of January, 2021 

 
____________________________________ 

Scott Mackey, Mayor 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Patty Sinnamon, CAO Clerk 

 
 

 

 

 


	6. Council Mtg Jan 6
	Budget Mtg Dec 9/20
	Budget Mtg Dec 14/20
	Budget Mtg Jan 6/21
	Budget Mtg Jan 13/21

	8.1 Public Mtg - Z13/20 
	Z13/20 Comments
	Z13/20 Draft By-law

	10. 2021-05 Council Remuneration
	10. 2021-06 2021 Salaries
	11.1ai OCWA Report Dec 2020
	11.1ci Bonnie Holliday
	11.1cii Forestry Program
	11.1ciii AMO Watchfile Jan 7
	11.1civ AMO Watchfile Jan 14
	11.4a Planner Report 2021-01
	11.4b CAO Report 2021-02
	11.4c CAO Report 2021-03
	11.4d CAO Report 2021-04
	11.4eTreasurer Report 2021-03
	11.4fTreasurer Report 2021-04
	11.5 By-law 2021-05
	11.5 By-law 2021-06
	19. Confirming By-law



